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Financial Review

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group’s board uses a range of performance measures to monitor and manage the business Certain of these
IMEAsures are #Mporkant in measusing our progress 1n creating shareholder value and are considered key performance
indicators {KPIs) The KPls measure past performance and also provide information to allow us to manage the
business mto the future and compnse sales and operaung profit, before amornzanon of nen-current intangibles and
non-recurring ttems, by business segment, interest cover, adjusted diluted earnings per share, net debt and EBITDA
KPIs for 2009, together with comparatives, arc set our in the table below

2009 2008

£000 L0000

Sates  Co-edinon Publishmg 36,519 42,713
Publishing 70,112 70,030
106,63] 112,743

Operaung profit before amoruzanon of non-current 1ntangibles, non-recurning items and group overheads

Co-edinon Pubhshing 4,960 6,397
Publishing 6,704 6,259
Operatng profit before amoruzation of non-current intangibles,

non-recurring 1tems and group overheads _11,664 _12,656

Operaung profit before amoruzaton of non-current intangibles and
non-recurring 1tems, after deducung group overheads 10,181 11,350

Interest cover, based on operatng profir before

amornzaton of non-current intangibles and non-recurning 1ems 3 06x 308x
Adjusted diluted carmngs per share .. 260p . 2635p

L000 £000
Ner debt 50,334 52,387
EBITDA ‘2%‘,299 '?..11.9‘6-8
Net debt EBITDA 221x 2 38x

Co cdinon Publishing sales decreased by 14 5% The US 15 a core market for our co-edition businesses and our
revenues were down i this market, reflecung the generally caunous approach of our publishing customers
Reprints accounted for 69% of sales compared to 65% last year, confirming that we have a very valuable backhst
and that our business model s working effecuvely Pubhshing <ales were up shghtly on last year Reprints of the
bock publishing umits accounted for 59% of sales, consistent with last year

The operaung profit margin, before amortizanun of nen-current intangibles and non-recurnng stems, 1n the
Co-edimon Publishing segment was 13 6%, compared 10 15 0% last year The operating profit margin m Publishing
was 9 5% compared to 8 9% last year

Interest cover, at 3 06 ames, was comparable with last year (3 08 nmes)

Net debt was lower by £2,053,000 than last year due ro exchange rate movements

Trends and factors bikelv to affect our {future development, performance and posiuion of the Group are set out 1n the
Chairman’s Report on pages 1 10 8
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Financial Review

SHAREHCLDER RETURN
Adyusted fully diduted earnings per share {see Note 10 on page 51) were 26 Op {2008 26 5p), down 2%

The propased final dividend of 4 Op 15 the same as last year’s final dividend The total dividend for the year 15
7 15p, the same as last year The total dividend 1s 3 6 times (2008 3 7 umes) covered by adjusted fully dilured
earmings per share

The market price of the shares of common stock on December 31, 2009 was 90 Op, up 44% compared to last vear
(62 5p)

Quarto’s common stuck has generated a total shareholder return over the seven years ended December 31, 2009 of
34 5% Over the same penod, Quarto’s common stock has considerably outperformed the FT'SE small cap index and
has slightly underperformed the media sector

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING FHE GROUP

The Group's borrowings, hiquidity, mterest rate and foreign exchange exposures and banking relationshaps are
managed ar Group level The foliowing policies have been applied duning the year to manage the financial nisks faced
by the Group with regard 10 funding and liquidity, interest rate exposure and currency rate exposures

. Ligudity nisk, the Group prepares an annual cash flow forecast which 15 reviewed by the Board covering the
next rwelve months This forecast 1s reviewed n the hight of the facilines available to the Group to ensure that
we have adequate hquidity The Directors, having made enquiries, consider thar the Group will have adequate
resources for the foreseeable future

. Interest rate risk, in order to protect the Group from increases v USS interest rates, the Group enters into
interest rate swaps The overall objecuive 15 to fix the interest rates on approximartely 50% of our borrowings

. Currency rate exposure, the Group’s prinaipal operanng currency 1s the US dollar Approximately two thirds of our
sales are denomimated in US dollars and a greater percentage of our expenditure At Group level we try to match
our annual US dollar recerpss and payments in order to mitigate the smpact that exchange rate fluctuations, with
regards to the US dollar, have on our resules In 2009 we had net US dollar income  The following table seis out
the principal average rates of exchange used 1n translaung the results of our overseas subsidianies

2009 2008
US Dollar 1357 186
Hong Kong Dollar 1213 14 44
Austrahian Dollar 1499 219

Operanonally, the Group has built up strong rclauonships with 1ts customers but it 15 not over rchiant on anv one
customer In terms of produst, we are not reliant on any one product or group of products None of our utles
accounted for more than 1% of group revenues m 2009

FINANCIAL REPORTING

We have very ught reporung deadlines so that we can focus on running the business [ his requires considerable
commitment and hard work from my staff and 1 would like ro thank them all for their hard work, unsunung support
and loyalry We have had an extremely busy year and at times I have asked a lot from my staff, but they contnue to
produce the goods

M J Mousley
Chief Financial Officer

March 22, 2010
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present thar report and the audited financial statements of The Quarto Group, Inc, for the year ended
December 31, 2009

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group conducts an international business whose principal acuvity 1s as a publisher of iltustrated non-fiction
books in co-ediion and under its own tmprint, for both adults and children A detatled review of the development of
the business of the Group 1s given in the Chairman’s Report on pages 1 to 8 and the Review of Operations on pages
910 21 A review of the business of the Group 1s set out in the Finanoal Review on pages 25 to 26 The prnapal
risks and uncertamues facing the Group are discussed 1n the Finanaial Review

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The proftt for the year amounted to £2,757,000 (2008 £344,000) The Eirectors propose a final ordinary dividend of
4 Op (2008 4 Op) per share, amounting o £787,000 (2008 £787,000), subject to approval at the Annual Meenng

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company, who served as Directors throughout che year, were as follows

L F Orbach

R ] Morley

M ] Mousley

P Campbell (Non-executive)
I Warne (Non-execuuve)

I. Collins (Non-execunve)

Previously an academic in New York, Laurence Orbach, Chairman and Chief Executive, had some publishing
experience before founding Quarto in 1976 Together with his role as Chairman and Chief Executive, he 1s also
responsible for Group Strategy

Robert Morley, Creative Directar, traned as a designer, and was magazine art diector for the Sunday Tetegraph
berween 1967 and 1970 Before co-founding Quarto, he spent some time with Reader’s Digest and IPC Part Works,
amongst others

Mick Mousley, Group Finance Direcior, B 5¢, A C A, worked for 12 years at Delonie Haskins & Sells {(now part of
PricewaterhouseCoopers), the last two vears of which were as a semor manager in the Mergers and Acquisiions
Department He yowned Quarto 1n 1987, and was appointed Finance Director in 1989

Educated at Eton College Peter Campbell started his business career with the Booker Group, holding a number of
markevng positions in thewr United Rum Merchants subsidiary  From 1972 10 1989 he was with the Ocean Group,
imtially on the sales and markeung stde, and from 1987 to 1982, he was the General Manager, UK Operauons, for
the M5AS subsidiary, with responsibibity for 27 locatnons and 800 staff Since 1989 he has been involved in
management trammng and development

Peter Waine has a wide corporate experience gamned as a resule of holding execuuve and non-cxecuuve Directorships
w a vanety of different sectors and with companics both public and private, up w £1 billion wrnover The
orgamsanons he has worked for include GEC, Coopers & Lybrand, WR Royle, and the CBI He 1s the co-founder of
Hanson Green, the principal source for non-execunve appomntments in the UK He s also a Visiung Professor at both
Cass and Warwick Business Schools

Leigh Collins has extensive City experience He was formerly a Director and Head of Corporate Finance at
Stockbrokers, Coliins Stewart Limiced, a firm of which he was joint founder 1n 1991

None of the Directors has a service agreement of more than one year's duranon

Save as disclosed in Note 32, no Director has had a matenial interest in any contract of significance with the company
or 11s subsidharies during the year
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS
The Bxrectors who held office at December 31, 2009 had the following 1nterests 1n the share capital of the Company

Number of USS0 10 shares of common stock

SHAREHOLDING December 31, 2009 January 1, 2009
L F Orbach® 2,909,185 2,909,185
R J Morley 1,402,852 1,402,852
M | Mousley 71,700 71,700
L Collins {Non-execunive) 337,650 337,650
P Campbell (Non-executive) 1,000 1,000

P Waine (Non-executne} - -
*2,678,413 shares in which L F Orbach 1s interested are owned through his family trusts
Details of Directors’ opitons are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 32

During the year the market price of the shares of common stock ranged berween 52 5p and 118 Op The markert
price at December 31, 2009 was 90 Op

Berween December 31, 2009 and March 22, 2010 there have been no changes 1n the mrerests of the Directors

EMPLOYEES

Applicanons for employment of disabled persons arc always fully considered, bearing 1in mind the aputudes of the
apphcant concerned In the event of staff becoming disabled, every effort 1s made to ensure that their employment with
the group continues and that appropniate traiming 15 arranged It 1s the policy of the group that the tramng, career
development and promanon of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be 1denucal with that of other employees

The group places considerable value on the involvement of us employees and has continued s praciice of keeping
them informed on matters affecting them as employees and on the vanious factors affectng the performance of the
group This is achieved through formal and informal meeungs Employees are consulted regularly on a wide range of
matters affecting their current and future interests

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND COMPANIES ACT 20086 DISCLOSURES
As at March 22, 2010 the latest pracucable date prior to the publication of this report, the Directors have been advised of
the following shareholders who have an mterest of 3% or more i the shares of common stock of the company

Number of USS0 10 shares of common stock Percentage
1 F Orbach 2,909,185 14 2%
Ennismore Fund Management 2,120,000 10 5%
J © Hambro Capital Managenent 2,050,000 10 0%
The Wellcome Trust Limuted 1,987,568 9 7%
Herald Invesement Trust 1,737,500 8 5%
R ] Morley 1,402,852 6 9%
Invesco English & Internatuonal Trust 1,150,000 §8%
The Quarto Group, Inc 765,321 37%
Lattice Group Pension Scheme 734,882 36%
Liontrust 693,348 34%

The nghts attaching o the Company’s shares of common stock are set out in the Company’s By-Laws, which can be
obtained from the Company

T'he rules for appointment and replacement of the Iirectors are set out 1n the Companvy’s By-Laws Dureciors can be
appointed by the Board of Directors upon the recommendaton of the Nominauon Commiuee A Director mav be
removed by the affirmative vote of a majonity of the Board of Directors then in office

The powers of the Directors are set out in the Company’s By-Laws The Company may purchase 11s own shares
through the marker or by tender at a price which will not exceed the average prices at which business was done for
10 business days before the purchase 1s made or, 1n the case of a purchase through the marker, at the marker price,
provided that 1t 15 not more than 5% above such average
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The Company may amend its By-Laws by special resolution approved by the affirmanve vore of the holders of a
majonty of the voung power of the shares

GOING CONCERN BASIS

After making enquinies, the Directors have formed a judgement, at the nme of approving the finanaial statements, that there
15 a reasonable expectanon that the Group has adequate resources to connnue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable
future For this reason the Directors conunue 1o adopt the going concern bases in prepaning the financial statemencs

The Group’s business activities, together with the factors hkely to affect its furure development, performance and position
are set out 1n the Chairman’s Report on pages 1 to 8 The financial posmion of the Group, 1ts cash flows, hquidity posmon
and borrowing facilines are deseribed in the Financial Review on pages 25 o 26 and m Note 19 to the financial statements

The Group has considerable financal resources together with a number of customers and suppliers across different
geographies As a consequence, the Directors believe that the Group 1s well placed to manage 115 business risks
successfully despite the current economic outlook

The Group has significant banking faciliues In particalar, the Group has committed faciliues of $165m through at
least June 2012 The Group has prepared detailed profit and cash flow budgets unul March 31, 2011 which show
that the Group 1s budgeted to have headroom within that period The budgets have been subject to various
sensiivity analyses The Group complied with s bank covenants 1n 2009 and the budgets show sufficient headroom
on the covenants throughout the period covered by the budgets The covenants will be monitered closely by the
beard and appropriate action would be taken if any of the covenants became under pressure

RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
The Group 1s exposed to a number of pnnapal nsks and uncertamues The Group's finanaal nsk management strategy 1s set
out on page 26 of the Finanoial Review and in Note 34 Operanonal nsks are set out on page 26 of the Financial Review

CORPORATE GOVERNAMNCE

The Directors have reviewed the governance arrangements of The Quarto Group, Inc m the context of the
Combined Code, revised in June 2008 The Combuned Code 2008 1s available from the website of the Financial
Reporung Counal ac http /www frc org uk/corporate/combinedcode efm  The principles of the code have been
apphed as follows

a) The Board of Directors represents the shareholders™ interests in mamntaimng and growing a successful business
including opumising consistent long-term financial returns

b) The Board comprnises three executive Directors and three non-execuuve Dhrectors The non-execunve Directors,
P Campbell (appointed March 26, 1998), P Waine (appointed June 4, 1998} and L Collins {appointed March 9,
1999) are considered by the Board to be independent, not withstanding the fact that P Campbell recerves £15,000
for consulnng fees and has 1,000 shares and that L Collins has 337,650 shares and have all been on the Board for
more than mine years The semor non-execunve Director 1s P Waine

c) The Board mects 51X umes a year Fach of the Dircctors attended alt of the mecungs held durmg the year A
formal apenda 15 prepared for cach meeting and all board papers and information are airculated to the Board
forty-eight hours before the meeungs

d} All of the Directors are subject 1o re-election by the shareholders at the Annual Meeting

e) The remuneranon of the executive Direcrors 1s recommended by the Remunerauon Commuttee, comprising
PWaine, P Campbell and L. Collins The Remuneration of non-executve Directors 1s determined by the Board
as a whole A separare report with respect to Directors’ remuneration 1s included on pages 32 1o 33 The
Commuttee, which meets rwice a year, does not have formal written terms of reference

f) The Chairman and the Finance Director are responsible for investor relanons They meet with major
sharcholders durimg the course of the year 1o ensure that they develop an understanding of their views, which
are commumeated to the rest of the Board ar Board Mectnngs The non-exccutive Direcrors meet with major
shareholders from nme to time Shareholders are invited (o attend the Annual Meeung ar least twenty working
days 1n advance of that meeting The Chairman of the Audit and Remunerauon Commitiee, P Waine, who s
also the Semor Independent Director, attends this meeting

g) The Chawrman ensures that new Directors recetve a full, formal and tailored inducnon on joining the board As
part of this process, the Company arranges for major shareholders to meet a new non-executve Director

29
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h) The Audit Commutiee, campnising P Campbell, P Wamne and L Collins, 1s chaired by P Waine and meets with the
independent auditors at least ewice a year L Collins provides the Commttee with financial experience The
Commuttee regularly review at Board level the financial back up and facihiues available at Head Office, as the
Group continues to expand The Commuttee has formal written verms of reference The Commutee monutors the
level of non-audst fees paid to the auditor to ensure that their objectvary 1s safeguarded

N The non-executive Directors meet ro discuss the executive Directors with the Chairman present and also meet
with the execurive Directors without the Chairman present, in order to evaluate the performances of the Board

1) The non-executive Directors, led by the senior non-executive Durector, are responsible for performance
evaluanon of the Chairman, takimg into account views of executve Directors

k} Quarto has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal acuon aganst the Direcrors

)] All Iarectors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary

m) Al of the non-cxecutve Directors attended all of the Audit Commuttee and Remuncrauon Commutiee meetings
held during the year

The Group has complid throughout the year with the provisions set out i Section 1 of the 2003 FRC Code, apart
from those listed below Where non-compliance is reported, this 15 because, in the opimion of the Board, 1115 not
appropnate to change current practice due to the size and constirution of the Board The provisions of the Combined
Cuode not comphed with are as follows

a) A2 1 - The Chairman of the Company 1s also the Chief Executve

b) A1 1 - A formal schedule of matters specificallv reserved for the Board 1s not required, since the Board forms
the executive management of the Group

) AS 2 - The Company does not have any formal arrangements for Directors, 1n the furtherance of their dunes,
to take independent profussional advice

d) B2 2 - The Remunerauon Commuttee consists of three independent non-executive Directors, but, it does not
have responsibility for the remuneration of semor management below the main Board level P Waine 15
the Chairman of the Commirttee

€) Schedule Al - Performance related bonuses are not normally given

f) B2 1 - There are no terms of reference for the Remunerauon Commuttee

gl A4 1 - The Company does not have a Nominanons Committee The Board as a whole is responsible for the
appoinument of its own members

h} Al 1. The Group does not have formal “whistleblowing™ procedures However, the strucrure 15 flat and the
Iine of communucation 15 short In addinon, the Executive Board and the finance department carry out
several visius per year to mdividual operaung units

The Board will continue to review 11s corporate governance arrangements, 1n the light of the Combined Code, as the
Group develops and grows, and, in parucular will review those provistons of the Combined Code that are not
comphied with currently

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board 1s responsible for the Group's system of internal control and for reviewing its effecuveness However, such
a system 1s designed to manage rather than ehminate the nisk of failure to achieve business objectives and can prowide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss The main elements of the nternal
control system are

a)  The results of individual operating units are reported monthly and reviewed by the Board at its six board
mecungs a year

b)  The management reports of each operanng umit are tailored to swit the busiess and management needs of local
management Each operaung urut has s own performance indicators and these are regularly reviewed and assessed

<) In additon to the monthly reporung, mdividual operaung umis report certamn management informauon more
frequently where 1t 1s considered appropnate

d) All operanng units report their bank balances twice weekly and a report 15 produced summansing the Group
position

€] The Board and the finance departiment make frequent visus to all operaung units These visits include a review
of the internal control system

f) All operaung unus prepare annual budgets and cash flow forecasts which are reviewed by the Board
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The Combined Code introduced a requirement that the Directors review rthe effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
controls, to cover all concrols including financial, eperauonal, comphance, and nsk management Following publication of
gwdance for the Directors, niernal Control Revised Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code (the Turnbu!l guidance}, the
Board confirms that there 1s an ongoing process for, and an annual review covering, the identification, evaluation and
management of the significant nsks faced by the Group, that has been m place for the year under review and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and accounts and that this pracess is regularly reviewed by the Board and accords wich the
gwidance The process 15 carried out through, inter aha

a) Group Board mecungs

b} Quarterly subsidiary management meetings

c) Presentanions by subsidiary Chief Executive officers to the Board

d) Discussion and review by the Exccutive Board and the finance department duning the several visits per year to individual
operating units

e) Discussions with professional advisers where appropriate

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The duties of the Audit Commuttee include

a) Montor the ntegrty of financal statements and formal announcements

b} Review the Company’s internal financial controls

c) Make recommendanons in relauon to the reappomtment and removal of the externat audttor
d) Approve remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor

e) Review and monitor independence and objectnaty of the external audior

The Board has considered the need for an internal audit function, but has resolved thas, due to the size of the Group, this cannot
be justified on the grounds of cost effecuveness at present

SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICIES

The Group agrees terms and conditions for 1ts business transactions when orders for goods and services are placed, ensuring that
suppliers are aware of the terms of payment including the relevant terms in contracts where appropriate These arrangements are
adhered to when making payments, subject to the terms and condinons being met by the suppher At December 31, 2009, Group
creditor days amounted to 103 days (2008 104 days) The holding company doecs not have any trade creditors

AUDITOR
Our independent zuditor, Grant Thormton UK LLP, 15 willing to conunue in office and, accordingly, a resolution 1s to be
proposed at the Annual Meeung for the reappointment of Grant Thornton UK LLP as auditor to the company

M ] Mousley
Sevretary

March 22, 2010
Company Registranon No FCO 13814
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

INTRODUCTION

The remuneranon commutret 1s responsible for making recommendations on behalf of the Board on the remuneranon
pohcy with regard to the Company’s executive Ihrectors Tt consists of the three non-executive Directors

The remuneration commuitee 1s consuituted within the relevamt provisions of Secion B of the Combimed Code wm

framing 11s remuncranon policy This report sets out the commuttee’s policy and disclosures on Directors’ remuneranon

UNAUDITED INFORMATION
REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration livels are set by reference to indimidual porformance, expenicnee and market condiuons with a view to
providing a package which 1s appropriate for the responsibtlinies mvolved

An individual director’s performance 1s reviewed and assessed constantly throughour the year and specifically at two
formal meenngs of the remuneratnon commitice each year This process inctudes considerauon of the finanaal results
of the Group

The stated policy ts expected 1o remain in place for the forthcoming year

COMPONENTS OF REMUNERATION
Basic salanes are determined according to the competitive market for execuuve direcrors, zking 1nto account their
experience, contribution and performance This determinanion 1s carnied out internally

Bonuses and share opnons are awarded on a discrenonary basts 1 recogmition of individual performances during the year

Opuions granted under the Company’s Executive Share Option Schemes are at market value at the date of grant and

exerasable between a mimmum period of three years and a maxunum period of seven years or ten years Options are |
exercisable if there has been an increase in the Group's earmings per share of at least 2% per annum above the |
growth in the retail prices index over a period of three years

SERVICE AGREEMENTS

All executive Darectors have service agreements which provide for 12 months' netice by the Director or the
Companvy There are no provisions for compensation other than the notice perrod As from 2004, the independent
non-executive Directors are engaged on annual rolling contracts Their fees are reviewed by the Board

All of the Directors stand for re-election annually at the Annual Meeung of the Company

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN
The following graph charts the toral shareholder recurn of the Company for the last seven years

—  (Quarto
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The FTSE All Share Media and Entercainment index and the FTSE Small Cap mdex are selected for comparnison The
Company’s peer group, in terms of uts s1ze and busmess, 1s considered 16 rest in these two indices




AUDITED INFORMATION

The Quaro Group Inc Annual Repore 2009

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
The auditor 15 required to report on the infermation contained 1n this secuon of the remuneranon report

The remuneration in respect of each Directar who served as a Director during the year was as follows

FEES / BASIC 2009 2008

NAME OF DIRFCTOR SALARY BENEFITS TOTAL TOTAI
[DOQ £000 £00_0 .C(_)_l)_q

L F Orbach 435 32 467 463
R J Morley 189 193 194
M ] Mousley 245 248 248
P Campbell (Non-executive) 44 - 44 43
P Waine (Non-execurtive) 33 - 33 31
1. Collins (Non-executive) 29 - 29 28
975 39 1,014 1,0(2:/'

Benefuts consist of benefits m kind in respect of health and life insurance The remuneranon of P Campbell ncludes

£15,000 of consulung fees, on an arm’s length basis

Each of the executive Directors has a defined cominbunon pension plan Dunng the year conurtbutions were made

as follows
2009 2008
. L0006 _{%9
L F Orbach 105 107
R ] Morley 28 28
M ] Mousley 37 37
170 172
SHARE OPTIONS
Details of share options of those Directors who served during the year are as follows
At January Exercised At December Exercise  Earliest date Expiry
1, 2009 In year 31, 2009 price” of exercise Date
R | Morley 5,000 - 5,000 £1115 2222003 21 22010**
M ] Mousley 7,500 - 5,000 £0 83 14 2 2006 13 22010**
7,500 - 7,500 £163 309 2007 2992011

*Market price at dare of award

** Now lapsed

No gains were made by Directors on the exeraise of share options n the current year or prior year Details of the

performance critenia of these options are given above under Components of Remuneration The highest and lowest

prices of the Company’s shares during the year were 118 Op and 52 5p respecovely The price at the year end was 20 Op

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on March 22, 2010

P Waine, Chairman of Remunerauon Commetiee
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities 1n respect of the directors’
report and the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparmg the Annual Report and the frnancial statements n accordance with
applicable law and regulations The Company 15 incorporated in the State of Delaware, Umted States and 15 subject to
the law of that state which places no requirement for annual reporting to sharcholders upon the directors However,
since the company has a lisung on the London Stack Exchange and a place of business in the UK, the directors are
required to prepare financial statements which comply wath certam provisions which are contained within the Lisung

Rules of the UK Minancial Services Autherity {the Lisang Rules) and UK company law for overseas companies

The company 15 an ‘overseas” company within the meaning of the Companies Act 2006 The directors have elected
to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and the parent company
finanaal statements in accordance with applicable law and UK GAAP

The directors have accepted responsibility for preparing group financial statemenis as required by IFRSs as adopted
by the EU which present farrly the financral positon and the performance of the group, the Compames Act 2006
provides in relation 1o such financial statements thar references in the relevant part of that Act to finanaial statements
giving a true and fair view are references to their achieving a fair presentation

The directors have accepted responsibility for preparing pareni company financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the parent company

In prepanng each of the group and parent company firancial statements, the directors have accepred responsibility o

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
. make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
. for the group finanual statements, state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the EU have been followed,

subject to any material departures disclosed and explamned in the group financial statements,

. for the parunt company finanaal statements, state whether applicable UK Accounnng Standards have been followed,
subtect 1o any material departures disclosed and explained in the parent companv finanaal statements, and

. prepare the financial statements on the poing concern basis unless 1t 15 iappropriate to presume that the group
and the parent company will conunue in business

The directors have accepted responsibility for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any ome the financial positton of the parent company and enable them to ensure thar 1ts finanaal
staternents comply with the relevant requirements of UK company law They have general responsibihty for taking
such steps as arc reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other wrregularities

Under applicable law, the company 1s responsible for preparing a Dircctors’ Report The directors have also accepred
responsibnlity for prepanng a Direcrors' Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement that comply
with applicable law and regulanons as f the full requirements were to apply

In so far as each of the directors 1s aware
. there 1s no relevant audit informanon of which the company’s auditor 15 unaware, and
. the directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audnt

information and to establish that the auditer 15 aware of that informanon

The directors are responstble for the mamntenance and integrity of the corporate and finaneial informanon mncluded
on the company’s website Legislatnon in the UK goverming the preparanon and disseminauon of financial statements
may differ from legislanon in other jurisdictons

To the best of my knowledge

. the financial statemenis, prepared 1n accordance with the apphcable set of of accountng standards, give a wrue
and fair view of the assers, habiliues, financial posinon and profit or loss of the company and the undertakings
included 1n the conoshdation 1aken as a whole, and

. the management report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position
of the company and the undertakings included in the consolidanon taken as a whole, together with a descnpuen of
the prinaipal nisks and uncertainties that they face

M ] Mousley

Secretary @

March 22, 2010
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
The Quarto Group, Inc

We have audited the financial statements of The Quarto Group, Inc for the vear ended December 31, 2009, whach
comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consclidated Balance
Sheet, Consohdated Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Parent Company Balance
Sheet, the related Notes 1 to 35 to the Accounts, and related Notes 1 to 9 to the Company Balance Sheet The financial
vreporung framework that has been apphed in the preparanon of the Group financial statements s apphcable law and
Internauonal Financial Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union The financial reporung
framework that has been appled 1 the preparation of the Parent Company financal statements 1s applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

In addition 10 our audit of the inancial statements, the Directors of The Quarto Group, Inc have engaged us o

* audi the informanon 1n the Directors’ Remuneration Report that 1s deseribed as having been audited, whach has
been prepared as 1f The Quarto Group, Inc were a UK incorporated company and required to comply with the
Companies Act 2006, and
¢ review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects comphance with the nine provisions of the June 2008
Combined Code as if The Quarto Group, Inc were required to comply with paragraph 9 8 6R of the FSA Lisung Rules,
and we report if 1t does not

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we muight state to the Company’s members those martters we are required to
state 1o them i an auditer’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do nort accepr
or assume responsibality to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

As explained more lully in the Drrectors’ Responsibihities Statement set out on page 34, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being sausfied that they give a true and fair view  Qur responsibihiry
15 to audut the financial statements in accordance with our engagement letter and Internauonal Standards on Auditing
(UK and Iretand) Those standards require us to comply with the Audiing Pracuces Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards
for Audutors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obraming evidence abour the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufftcient 1o give
reasonable assurance that the inanaal starements are free from matenal nusstatement, whether caused by fraud or
errar This includes an assessment of whether the accounung policies are appropriate to the group's circumstances and
have been consistently apphed and adequarely disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmficant accounung esumates made by
the drrectors, and the overall presentanon of the financial statements

OPIMNION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our epimion

+ the finanaial statements give 3 true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as
at December 31, 2009 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended,

* the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the
European Umon,

*  the Parent Company finanaial statements have been property prepared in accordance with Umited Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounung Pracuce, and

OPINION ON CTHER MATTERS

In our opinion

» the parts of the Directors’ Remuneranon Report, which we were engaged to audit, have been properly prepared in
accordance wicth the Compames Act 20086, as if those requirements were to apply te The Quarto Group, Inc

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Registered Auditors
London

March 22, 2010




The Quario Group T Annual Repont 2009

Consolidated Income Statement Year Ending December 31, 2009

2009 2008
Notes £000 __£900
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue 3 106,631 112,743
Cost of sales {67,939) {71,887)
GROSS PROFIT 38,692 40,856
Other operanng income 227 182
Distribution costs {3,962) (4,438)
Admimistrauve expenses before amoruzanon
of non-current intangibles and non-recurring items (24,766) (25,250)
Amorazatuon of non-current intangibles {1,596) (1,830)
Exceprional 1tems
Restrucruning costs (1,625) (4,274)
Total admimstrative expenses (27,987) {31,354)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE AMORTIZATION
OF NON-CURRENT INTANGIBLES AND NON-RECURRING ITEMS 10,191 11,350
OPERATING PROFIT 5 6,970 5,246
Finance income 7 279 421
Finance costs 8 {3,611} (4,107)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 3,638 1,560
Tax 9 (881} (1,216)
PROFIT FORTHE YEAR 2,757 . 34_&
Aunbuiable o
Equity holders of the parens 2,567 (117}
Minornity interest 190 461
2,757 o 344
EARMNINGS PER SHARE
From continuing operations and total
Basic 10 13 0p {0 é)p

luted 10 Ei]p {06)p
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year Ending December 31, 2009

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Foreign exchange translavion differences
Cash flow hedge change n fair value

Net income recognised directly 1n equity

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interests

1009 2008
£060 £000
1,757 344
(413) 3,562
1,449 {2,801}
1,036 761
3,793 1,105
3914 {590)
{121} 1,695
3,793 1,105

3

~
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Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2009

Notes

NOMN-CURRENT ASSETS
Goodwill 11
Other intangible assets 12
Property, plant and equipment 13
Deferred tax assets 21
Total non-current assets

CURREMT ASSETS
Intangible assets Pre-publication costs 15
inventories 16
Dernvative financial instruments 20
Trade and other receivables 17
Cash and cash equivalents 18
Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short term borrowing 23
Dernvanve financial instruments 20
Trade and other payables 24
Tax payable
Total current Liabilities

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Medium and long term borrowings 19
Deferred tax habilicies 21
Denvanve financial imstruments 20
Other payables
Total non-current habihbies

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Share cap:tal 25

Paid in surplus
Retained deficit and other reserves

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLEERS
OF THE PARENT

MINORITY INTEREST
TOTAL EQUITY

2009 2008 2007
£000 £000 £000
22,624 23,380 18,922
1,388 3,242 4,194
6,703 7,564 7,445
615 1,172 1,080
31,330 35,358 31,641
31,941 32,222 24,946
15,805 17,821 15,425
- 741 -
33,696 38,484 31,811
24,092 28,180 17,577
105,534 117,448 89,759
136,864 152,806 121,400
(250 {333) {2,760)
(144) - -
(32,447) {42,492) (32,626)
{299) (765) (1,547}
(33,140) (43,590) {36,933}
(74,176} {80,234) (58,190)
(3,975) (3,937) (3,273}
(2,462} (3911) (1,110)
(17) (20) (29)
{80,630) (88,102} {62,602)
(113,770)  {131,692) {99,535)
23,094 21,114 21,865
1,162 1,162 1,162
21,768 21,768 21,768
(4,514) (7,021) (5,025)
18,416 15,909 17,905
4,678 5,205 3,960
23,094 21,114 21,865

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonised for 1ssue on March 22, 2010

They were signed on is behalf by

M ] Mousley @

Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Year Ending December 31, 2009

Balance at January 1, 2008

Profit for the year
Foreign exchange wranslanon differences
Cash flow hedge change i fair value

Total comprchensive income for the year

Share opuons exercised by emploiees
Dividends to shareholders (notc 26)
Dividends patd to minority interest
Purchase of minority wnterest

Balance at December 31, 2008
and January 1, 2009

Profit for the year
Foreign exchange translanon differences
Cash flow hedge <hange n fair value

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends to shareholders (note 26)
Dividends paid to minorin interest

Purchase of mmority interest

Balance at December 31, 2009

Equiry
aaribuzable o
Sharc Paid in Hedging  Translation Treasury  Retamed equiry holders Minonn
captal surplus reserve reserve shares deficir  of the parent mterest Toral
(note 25) {note 26) [pote 26) {note 26)

£000 L000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1,162 21,768 {1,110) {829) (389} (2,697) 17,905 3,960 21,865
- - - - - (117) {117) 461 344

- - - 2,328 - - 2,328 1,234 3,562

- - {2,801) - - - {2,801} - (2,801)

- - (2,801) 2,328 - {117) {590y 1,695 1,105

- - - - 1 - 1 - 1

- - - - - (1,407) {1,407) - (1,407}

- - - - - - - {248) (248}

- - - - - - - (202) (202}
1,i62 21,768 {3,911) 1,499 {388) (4,221) 15,909 5,205 21,114
- - - - - 2,567 2,567 190 2,757

- - - (102) - - (102} (311) {413)

- - 1,449 - - - 1,449 - 1,449

- - 1,449 {102) - 2,567 3,914 (121) 3,793

- - - - - {1,407) (1,407) - (1,407}

- - - - - - - (185) (185)

- - - - - - - (221) (221)
1,162 21,768 (2,462} 1,397 {388) (3,061) 13,416 4,678 23,091
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Year Ending December 31, 2009

2009 2008
£000 £000
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2,757 344
Adjustmenis for
Net finance costs 3,332 3,686
Depreciatton of property, plant and equipment 1,049 1,089
Tax expense 881 1,216
Amornzauon of non-current mtangible assets 1,596 1,830
Impairment of goodwill and non-current intangible assets - 309
Amoruzauon and loss on disposal of pre-publication costs 11,559 9,607
Movement in farr value of derivauves 885 {741)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equpment (34) %)
Operating cash flows before movements 1n working capual 22,025 1730
Decrease ininventories 1,045 1,367
Decrease {Increase) in receivables 3,472 {1,106)
(Decreasc) Increase m payables (8,780) 6,171
Cash generared by operauons 17,762 23,763
Income taxes paid (954) {1,093)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 16,808 22,670
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
interest received 278 421
Proceeds on disposal of properry, plant and equipment 118 183
Investment 1n pre-publication cosrts {12,384) (13,071)
Purchases of properry, plant and equipment (352) (1,038}
Acqusition of subsidiaries (532) {293)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (12,871) {13,798)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid {1,407) (1,407)
Interest payments {4,000} (4,043}
Proceeds on issue of share capiral - 1
New bank loans raised - 4,000
Dividends paid 1o minoricy nrerest (185) (248)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (5,592) {1,697)
MNET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {1,655) 7,175
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 28,180 16,109
Foreign currency exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents {2,433) 4,896

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR (Note 18) i 24,092 X 28,180




The Quarto Group Inc Annual Report 2009

Notes to the Accounts Year Ending December 31, 2009

| GENERAL INFORMATION
The Quarto Group, Inc 1s a company incorporated 1n the State of Delaware, United States The address of the

registered office 1s given on page 24 The nature of the group’s operanions and us prinaipal activiues are set out in Note
4 and w1 the Direcrors’ Report on page 27

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that 1s the currency of the pnmary economic environment
m which the group operates Foreign operanons are included 1n accordance with the policies set out i Note 2

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of comphance

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and us subsidiaries {together referred to as the “Group”)
The parent company financial statements present informanon about the company as a separate enaty and not about 1ts group

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors 1n accordance with Inrernational
Financial Reporung Standards as adopted by the EU (*IFRS”} The Company has elected 10 prepare 1ts parent
company financial statemems in accordance with UK GAAP, these are presented on pages 62 to 74

The adopuon of TAS 1 (revised) has required the reconciliaten of mevements 1n equity, previously disclosed 1n Note 26
in the hnancial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009, to be presented as a pnmary statement enttled
‘Consolidated Sratement of Changes in Equity’ In addinon, the Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and
Expense has been replaced with the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, and includes the disclosure of a
balance sheet at the beginning of the earliest comparanve period

Basis of accounting

The finanusal statements are preparcd on the histonical cost basts, except that denvative financral instruments are stated
at far value

The preparauon of finanaal statements in conformiuty with IFRS requires management 1o make judgements, esumates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reporred amounts of assets and habihues, income and
expenses he esumates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and varnious other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Actual results mav differ from these esumates

The esurnates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accouniing estmates are
recogmsed 1n the peniod 1n which the estimate 15 revised if the revision affects only that penod or 1n the peniod of the
revision and furure penods if the revision affects both currenr and furure periods judgements made by Management in
the applicatton of IFRS that have a significant effect on the frnancial statements and accounting esmates are discussed in

Note 11 Key assumpnions in making the assessment of carrying value of goodwill

Note 15 Assessment of the useful life of pre-publication costs

Note 17 Assessment of the impairment of trade recesvables and the estimated allowance for sales returns
Note 21 Caleulanon of temporary differences in the assessment of deferred tax habthties

There are no judgements, apart from those involving csumations, that management has made 1n applying the Group's
accounung policies The z2ccountng pohcies sex out below have been applied to all periods presented

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements include the resulis of the company and all of us subsidiary undertakings A subsichary s
an enuty controlled, directly or indirectly, by the Group Control is the power 10 govern the financial and eperaung
pohicies of the enuty so as to obtam benefus from us acovities The financial statements of subsidianies are mcluded in
the consohdated financial statements from the date that control commences unul the date that control ceases

Intragroup balances and any unreahsed gans and losses or income and expenses ansing from intragroup transacttons
are ehminaced 10 prepaning the consolidated financial statements

The interest of minonity shareholders on an acquisiton 1s intally measured at the minony’s propornon of the net fair
value of the assets, habihties and contingent hiabihiues recognised
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Notes to the Accounts Year Ending December 31, 2009

Business combimauons, mtangible assets and goodwill

All business combinatons are accounted for by applying the purchase method Goodwilt represents the excess of the
cost of the acquisiion over the fair value to the group of the net assets and any conungent habiliues acquired

In respect of acquisitions prior to January 1, 2004, goodwili 1s included on the basis of s deemed cost which
represents the amount recorded previously under UK GAATP

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions 1s stated at cost less any accumulated rmpatrment Josses From January 1, 2004,
goodwill 1s allocated to cash generating umts and 1s no longer amortized but 1s tested annually for impairment
Prior to January 1, 1998, goodwill was wntten off to reserves n the year of acquisition

Other intangible assets, such as backlists, that arc acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortizanon and impairment losses

Amorazanon of iniangible assets s charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangtbie assets The amoruzation period for non-coniracmmal relanonships 1s 2 § years and for backlists 1s
berween 4 and 10 years

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets including goodwall

The carrying amount of the Group’s assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date 10 determine whether there 1s any
mdicanion of imparrment If any such indicanion exists, the asset’s recoverable amount 1s esumated The recoverable
amount 1s the higher of fair value, reflecung market conditrons less costs to sell, and value n use based on an internal
discounted cash flow valuauon For goodwill, the recoverable amount 1s esumated at each batance sheer date An
umpairment §oss 1s recogmsed whenever the carrying amount of an asset or 1ts cash-generaung unut exceeds 1ts
recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognised 1n the income statement

Revenue recognition

Revonue represents invorced value of sales less anticipated returns excluding customer sales taxes and intra-group
sales The esnmated allowance for sales returns 1s based on a review of the historical return patterns associared with
the various sales outlets, as well as current market trends in the busimesses in which the Group operates Revenues are
recogmised on desparch of goods and when the significant nsks and rewards of ownership have been passed to the buyer

Leasing

Where assets are acquired under finance leases (including hire purchase contracts), which confer risks and rewards
similar 1o those attached to owned assets, the amount represenung the outnight purchase price of such assets 15 included
in property, plant and equpment All other leases are classified as operaung leases Depreciauon ts provided m
accordance with the accounung policy below The capital element of future finance lease payments 1s included
liabilities and the interest element is charged to the income statement over the peniod of the lease in proporuon to the
capital element outstanding  Expenditure on operanng leases 1s charged to the income statement on a siraight line basis

Foragn currencies

Transactions 1n foragn currencies are translated at the forergn exchange rate ruhing ac the dae of the rransacnon
Monetarv assors and babthities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are ranslated at the exchange
rate ruling art that date with any exchange differences ansing on retranslation bemng recogmised 1n the mcome sratement

The assets and hiabiitres of foreign operauons, including goodwil! and fair value adjustments arising on
consoldation, are translated into sterling at exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date The revenues and
expenses of foreign operations are translated mto sterhing at average annual exchange rates Foreign exchange
differences arising on retranslanton are recopmsed directly in a separate translaton reserve within other
comprehensive income

Exceptional ttems
Excepuonal 1tems arc non-recurring 1iems thar, in management’s judgement, need to be disclosed by virtue of their
size or madence in order for the user to obtain a proper understanding of the financial informarton
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Notes to the Accounts Year Ending December 31, 2009

Retrrement benefit costs

The Group’s pension costs relate to individual pension plans and are charged ro the income statement as they fall due

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss far the year comprises both current and deferred tax Current tax 15 the expected 1ax payable
on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substannally enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustments to tax payable 10 respect of previous years Deferred tax 1s provided using the balance sheet habihty method,
providing for temporary differences berween the carrying amounts of assets and habilines for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxatton purposes However, deferred tax 1s not provided on the miual recogmnon of
goodwill, nor on the imnal recogmuon of an asset or a2 liability unless the retated transaction 1s a business combmanten
or effects tax or accounung profit Not all temporary diffcrences give nise to deferred tax assets / habihnies A deferred
tax asset 1s recogmsed onlv o the extent that it 1s probable that future 1axable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised Changes in deferred tax assets or habilities are recogmsed as a component of tax expense in the
wncome statement, except where they reate to items that are charged or credsted directly to equity, in which case the
related deferred tax is also charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for
impairments in value The Group recogmises in the carrying amouns of property, plant and equipment the subsequent
costs of replacing part of such wems when there are future economic benefits Al other costs are recogmsed n the
income statement as an expense as they are incurred

Depreciation 1s provided on a straight-hne basis to write off the cost, less the estimated residual value, of property,
plant and equipment over thewr esumated useful ives, which are reviewed annually Where parts of an item of plant
and equipment have separate lLives, they are accounted for and depreciated as separate items Residual values are
reassessed on an annual basis Land is not depreciated

Esomated useful ives are as follows

Freehold and long leasehald property ~ 50 years
Short leasehold property — over the peniod of the lease
Plant, equipment and motor vehicles — 4 1o 10 years
Fixtures and fittings — § to 7 years

Assers held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,
where shorter, over the term of the relevane lease

The gan or loss ansing on the disposal or rearement of an asset is determined as the difference becween the sales !
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s recognised in income

Pre-publicanon costs |
Pre-publicaton costs represent direct costs incurred in the development of book ttles prior o cheir publicavon These
costs are carried forward in current intangible assets where the book tile will generate furure economuc benefits and
costs can be measured reliably These costs are amortzed upon publication of the book utle over estmated econorme
lives of 3 ycars or less, bemng an estimate of the expected operanng vycle of a book urle The investment in pre-
publicanion has been disclosed as part of the imesung activittes 1n the cash flow statement

inventonies

Inventory 15 valued at the lower of cost, including an appropriate poruon of overheads, and net reahsable value, on a
firsc 1n, first out basis Net reahisable value 15 the esumated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
esnmated costs of completion and selling expenses

Fianaal msiruments

Finanaal assets and finanaial habilines are recognised on the Group’s balance sheet when the group becomes a parry
to the comtractual provisions of the instrument
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Notes to the Accounts Year Ending December 31, 2009

Financial Assets
Finanaial assets other than hedging instruments are divided into the following categories
¢ loans and recewvables

* finanual assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financtal assets arc assigned to the different categonies on nrual recogmuon, depending on the charactenisucs of the

mstrument and 1ts purpose A financial instrument’s category 1s retevant for the way 1t 1s measured and whether any

resulung income and expenses ts recogmsed 1n profit or loss or directly 1n equaty Sec Note 34 for a summary of the ‘
Group’s finanaal assets by category

Generally, the Group recogmses all financial assets using trade date accounting An assessment of whether a financial
asset 15 impatred 15 made at least at each reporting date All income and expense relating to financial assets are
recogmsed in the imcome statement line item “finance costs” or “finance income™, respectively, with the excepuon of
trade and other recervables which are recorded i revenue and admimstrauve expenses

Loans and receivables, including trade receivables, are non derivauve financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted 1n an acuve market After imual recogmuon, at fair value, these are measured at
amornzed cost using the effecuve interest method, less provision for impairment Any change 1n their value 1s
recognised i profit or loss The Group's trade and most other receivables fall 1into this category of finanaial
mstruments Discounung, however, 15 omuted where the effect of discounnng ts immatenal

Significant receivables are considered for impairment on a case by-case basis when they are past due act the balancc
sheet date or when objecnive evidence 1s recerved that a speaific counterparty will default All other receivables are
reviewed for impairment m groups, which are determuned by reference to the industry and region of a counterparty
and other available features of shared credit risk charactenistics, if any The percentage of the wnite down 1s then
based on recent histonical counterparty default rates for each idenufied group

Denvatie finanaal mstruments are imteally recogmised at fair value, and subsequently classified as financal assets at
fair value through profit and loss Any gain or loss ansing from denvatine financial instruments s based on changes
in fair value, which 1s determuined by direct reference to actuive market transactions or using a valuanon techmque
where no acuve market exists

Financial Liabahines

The Group's financial habihues include borrowings, tradc and other payables (includimg finance lease habilines)
After inteal recogmuon at farr valoe, all finanual habilines, with the exception of denvanve finanaial mstruments,

arc measurcd at amortzed cost using the effecuve interest ratc method A summary of the Group’s financial habihines
by category 1s given in Note 34

All of the Group's dernanve financtal instruments that are not destgnated as hedging instrements 1n accordance with |
the strict conditions explained under the heading “Dertvauve financial instruments and hedge accounting™, are |
accounted for art faur value through profit or loss by defimuon
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Finanaal habihues and equity instcruments

Financial habilitres and equity instruments are classified according 10 the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
e An equity mnstrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after deducung all of
Financial Liabihnes and equity

Finance costs

Finance costs comprise tnterest payable on borrowings calculated using the effecuve interest mechods

Finance income

Finance ncome comprises interest receivable, which 1s recogmesed 1n the income statement as 1t accrues using the
cffecuve interest method

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents compnses cash balances, call deposits and
bank uverdrafis that form an integral part of the Group’s cash management processes

Denvanve finanaal tnstruments and hedge accounting

The Group’s actuvines expose 1t pnmarily to the fimancial nisks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and
interest rates The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge these exposures The Group does not use
dertvanve financal instruments for speculanve purposes

The use of inanaal denvatuves 1s governed by the Group's policies approved by the board of directors, which provide
written principles on the use of financial denivanves

Where a denvaove financial instrument 1s designared as a hedge of the vanability in cash flows of a recogrused asset or
liabihry, or a highly probable forecasted transacuon, the effecuve part of any gan or loss on the derivanve finanaal
wstrument 1s recogmised directly m other comprehensive income If the cash flow of a firm commutment or forecasted
transacuon results i the recogmition of an asset or a habihry, then, at the ume the asset or habiliry 15 recogrused, the
assoctated gans or losses on the dervauve that had previously been recogrused mn other comprehensive income are
included 10 imnal recognition of that asset or hability, amounts deferred in other comprehensive income are recogrsed
i the income statement n the same period i which the hedged 1tem affects net profit or loss

Changes in the fair value of denvamve fimanaal instruments that do not quahfy for hedpge acconnung are recogmsed in
the income statement as they arise

Fair value measurements are based on quoted prices in acuve markets for the same instrument

Hedge accounning 1s discontinued when the hedping mstrument expires or 1s sold, terminated, or exercised, or no
longer qualifies for hedge accounning At that ume, any cumulaave gain or lass on the hedping instrument recogrised
ih equity s retained in other comprehensive ncome untit the forecasted ransacnon oceurs If a hedged transaction 1s
no longer expected to oceur, the net cumulative gan or foss recognised 1v other comprehensive mcome 1s transferred to
net profir of loss for the period

15
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Compound Financial Instruments

Convertible loan notes

Converuble notes that can be converied to share capnal at the opuon of the holder, where the number of shares
1ssued does not vary with changes mn thewr fair value, are accounted for as compound finanoial instruments
Transaction costs that relate to the 1ssue of a compound financial instrument are allocated to the habihty and equity
components 1 proportion to the allocation of proceeds The equity component of the convertible notes 1s calculated
as the excess of the 1ssue proceeds over the present value of the future interest and principal payments, discounted at
the market rate of nterest apphcable 1o similar habiliuies that do not have a conversion opuon The interest expensc
recogmsed in the income statement 15 calcutated using the effective interest rare method

Treasury Shares

Treasury sharcs represent holdings of the Company’s own equity mstruments No gain or loss 15 recogmised 1n the
prefit and loss account on the purchase, ssue or cancellanon of these equity nstruments Consideration paid or
received 1s recogrised directly i other comprehensive income

Share-based payments

The Group 1ssues equity sertled share-based payments 1o certain employees Equiry-sertled share-based payments are
measured ar fair value at the darte of grant The fair value, determined at the grant date, of equity setded-share based
payments ts expensed on a straight hine basis over the vesting penod, based on the Groups esimate of shares that
will eventually vest

The fair value of employee share option grants 15 calculated using a binomial model, raking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the opuons were granted The value of the charge 1s adjusted to reflect expected and
actual levels of opnions vesung No sigmficant balances anse, therefore the disclosure requirements of IFRS 2 have
not been shown, due to the immatenality of the accounts mnvolved

Borrowing costs
All berrowing costs are recogmsed i the inconie statement in the period in which they are incurred The Group does
not mcur any borrowng cosis which are directly attributable to the acquisinon, construcuon or production of

qualifying assets

Financial nsk management
The principal nisk factors faced by the Group are disclosed in Note 34 and on page 26

IFRSs and inzerpretations 1ssucd not yut effecuve
The following Adopted IFRSs and interpretations, which are expected to have an impactin future years, were
available for early application but have not been applied by the Group in these financial stacements

[AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Finanoal Statements (Revised 2008)
(effective 1 July 2009}

Amendment to TAS 39 nanaial Instruments Recognition and Measurement — Ehgible Hedged Trems
(effective 1 July 2009)

IFRS 3 {Revised) Business combinations (Revised 2008)
(effective 1 July 2009}

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

(effective 1 January 2013}
Improvements to IFRSs 2009

The Drrectors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretanons in future periods will have no
material tmpact on the financial statements of the Group except for the reatment of acquisinon of subsidianes in
furure accounnng periods
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3 REVENUE
An analysis of the group’s revenue 15 as follows

Sales of goods

Revenue

Other operatng imncome
Finance income

Total income

4 OPERATING SEGMENTS

2009 2008
£000 £000
106,631 112,743
106,631 112,743
227 182
279 421
]071113_7 113,346

For management purposes, the group 15 orgamised mto two types of product Co-edinion Pubhshing and Publishing
These products are the basis an which the group reports its operaung segment informanon

The information about these segments 15 presented below

CO-EDTION  CO EDITION

PUBLISHING ~ PUBLISHING  PUBLISHING  PUBLISHING TOTAL TOTAL
2009 2008 2009 2008 2005 2008
£000 £000 £000 (000 £000 £000
REVENUE
Total sales 38,555 44,861 70,112 70033 108,667 114,894
Inter segment revenue (2,036) (2,148) - (3) {2,036) {2,151)
External <ales s 519 42,713 70,112 70,030  106.631 112,743
Segment resubt before amornizacron of
non-current intangibles and excepnonal items 4,960 6,397 6,704 6,259 11,664 12,656
Amortization of non-current intangibles {12) (12)  {1,584) (1,818) (1,596) {1,830)
Restructuring costs {221) - {1,404) (4,274) (1,625) {4,274}
Segment result _ 4727 6,385 3,716 167 8,443 6,552
Unallocated corporate expenses (1,473) (1,306)
Qperatng profit 6,970 5,246
Investment income 279 421
Finance costs (3,611}  (4,107)
Profit before rax 3,638 1,560
Tax (881) (1,216)
Profit after tax 2,757 344

Inter-segment revenues are on an arm’s-length basis

~J1
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4 OPERATING SEGMENTS (conunued)

CO-EDMTION  CO-EDITION

PUBLISHING ~ PUBLISHING  PUBLISHING  PUBUSHING TOTAL TCTAL
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
£000 000 £000 £000 000 £000
Capita} addinons 83 184 269 854 352 1,038
Deprecianon 297 324 752 765 1,049 1,089
Amoruzanon of non-current intangbles 12 12 1,584 1,818 1,596 1,830
Investment 1n pre-publication costs 6,229 6,798 6,155 6,273 12,384 13,071
Amoruzation of pre publication costs __5,809 5,084 5,750 4,445 11,559 9,529
There are no other sigmificant non-cash expenses
BALANCE SHEET
ASSETS
Segnent assets 36,374 36,100 75,783 86,613 112,157 122,713
Unallocated corporate assets _24,707 30,093
Consolidated rotal assets 136,864 152,806
LIABILITIES
Segment hatnhues ..]_.Ll].z 1‘91740 _1 9,347 _22,772 32,464 42,512
Unallocated corporate lrabilines _B1,306 89,182
Consolidated toral habilues 113,770 131,692

GEOGRAPHICAL AREAS
The Group operates in the following main geographic areas

Non-current  Non-current

Sales Sales assets assets

2009 2008 2009 2008

£000 £009 EUEE ﬂ]_U_U

United Kingdom 14,363 17,109 8,553 9,107
United States of America 52,206 54,717 17,151 20,783
Australasia and Far East 20,489 20,904 4,349 3,611
Europe 14,426 15,793 662 685
Rest of the World 5,147 4,220 - -
106,631 112,743 30,715 34,186

Sales are allocated based on the counrry in which the customer 15 located, irrespective of the onigin of the goods
Non-current assets are based on the subsidiaries country of domicile and compnise goodwill, other intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment
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5 OPERATING PRORIT
Opceraung profit has been arnived art after chargingf{credinng)

(Profit) loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Net foreign currency exchange losses

Amornzauon of non-current intangibles
Amortzauon of pre-publication costs

Staff costs {see Noie 6)

Auditor’s remuneranon (see below)

Cost of inventory recognised as an expense
Restructuring costs

Restructuring cosis primarly relate to charges associated with the consohdation of the US warehouse and back

office funcuons
Auditor’s remunerauon

I ees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts
I ees pavable ta the Company’s auditor and 1ts associates for other services
The audit of the Company’s substdiarics pursuant to legislation

6  STAFF COSTS

The average monthly number of employees (including execunve directors) was

Theiwr aggrepate remuneranon compnsed
Wapes and salanes
Soual secunty costs

Other pension costs

Directors’ remunerauon 1s disclosed 1n Noze 31

7 HNANCE INCOME

Interest mcome on financial assets carried at amornzed cost

2009 2008
£009 £000
(34) (%)
1,049 1,089
14 21
1,596 1,830
11,559 9,529
18,932 18,807
171 164
26,662 27,307
3 1,625 4,274
36 36

13§ 128
171 164
2009 2008
Nﬂ"ﬂf{ Number
457 541
£000 £000
16,988 16,798
1,345 1,371
599 638

) 18_,932 _1_3,8(_]_7
2009 2008
£000 £000
279 421

49
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8 FINANCE COSTS

2009 2008

£000 N £000

Interest expense for borrowings at amornzed cost 3,588 4,053

Interest expense for finance lease arrangements 23 54

Total finance costs 3,611 4.107

9 TAX

2009 2008

£000 {000

Current tax on profit lor the year 607 500

Adjustment to prior years (177) (171)

Total current tax 430 329
Deferred rax (Note 21)

Current year originanon and reversal of temporary differences 451 887

881 _ 1216

Corporation tax on UK profits 1s calculated at 28 0%, based on the UK standard rate of corporation tax, (2008 28 5%)
of the estimated assessable profit for the year Taxauon for other junsdicuons 1s calculated at the rates prevailing in
the respective junsdictions

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the tncome statement as follows

2009 2009 2008 2008
£000 % £000 %
Profir before tax 3,638 1,560
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 28 0%
(2008 28 5%} 1,019 445
Tax on exceptronal losses not nulised 334 1,090
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiartes
operatng in other junisdicuons (153) {251)
Adjustment to prior years (177) {171)
Qther, including tax effect of expenses that
are not deducnble in determiming taxable profic {142} 103
Tax expense and effecuve tax rate for the year 881 24 2% 1,216 77 9%
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

From conunwng operanons

The calculauon of the basic and diluted earmings per share is based on the following daiz

Earnings

Earmings for the purposes of basic earnings per share being net
profit attrtburable to equuny holders of the parent

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of basic earmngs per share

Effect of dilunve potential ordinary shares
Share opuons

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of diluted earmings per share

Earnings per share

Basic

Diluted

2009 2008

£000 £000

i 2,567 (117)
_P':Tumb:r Number
19,679,229 19,678,237
3,562 -
19,682,791 19,673,2:3‘_2
2009 2008

pence pence

i .-13 Op (0 6)p
13 0p 0 6)p

The dilunive effect of share opuons {24,896 shares) and the loan note (317,871 shares), w 2008, were not included 1n
the above calculauons because they were not dilunive 1n that year The dilume effect of these 1tems, 1n 2008, was

however included in the calculation below because the items were dilunve on adjusted earmings The total shares for

the calculavion, 1n 2008, were 20,021,004 shares

Adjusted earmings

Earrmungs for the purposes of basic earnings per share being net

profit attrtbutable to equity holders of the parent

Amornzanon of non-current intangibles {net of tax and mnonty interest)

Restrucruring costs {net of tax and mimonty interest)

Earmings for the purposes of adjusted earmings per share
Effect of diluaive potenual ordinary shares

Interest on loan nates (net of tax)

Earmings for the purposes of diluted earmings per share

Adjusted earmings per share

Basie

Dibuted

2,567 (117)
1,075 1,210
1,474 4,197
5,116 5,290
- 16
5,116 5,306
2009 2008
pence pence
26 Op 26 9p
26 Op 26 5p
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11 GOODWILL
2009 2008 2007
£000 £000  £000
Cost
At January 1 23,607 18,922 9,710
Exchange differences (1,067} 4,685 221
Recognised on acquisiuons 311 - 8,991
At December 31 22,851 23,60_7 1_81922
Accumulated impairment losses
At January 1 (227 - -
Impatrment losses for year - (227} -
At December 31 (227} {227) -
Carrying amount
At December 31 22,624 23,380 18,922
Impairment tests for cash generanng units contamng goodwill
The following umts have sigmficans carrying amounts of goodwill
MBI 10,986 12,114 8,887
Quayside 4,023 4,436 3,255
Premicr 2,782 2,297 2,138
Quarto Publishing 2,780 2,780 2,780
Others 2,053 1,753 1,862
22,624 23380 189m

1 he recoverable amount of each cash generaung umt (“*GGU”) 1s based on value in use basis The key assumprions
used in the value m use calculations were

Discount rate 7 3%, which reflects current assessments of the nme value of money

Cash flow projecuions have been adjusted for nisks speaific to the CGUs for next year based on the most recent
financial budgets

Cash flow growth rates based on a growth rate of 2% 1o reflect risk

Changes 1n selling prices and direct costs based on past experience and expecratuons of future changes in the market
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12 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Non
Contractual
Relauonships Backhists lutal
£000 £000 £000

Cost
At January 1, 2008 537 8,126 8,663
Exchange differences 70 2,849 2,919
At Duwember 31, 2008 and January 1, 2009 607 10,975 11,582
Exchange differences 29 {1,1G5) {1,076)
At December 31, 2009 636 9,870 10,506
Amortizanon and Impairment
At January 1, 2008 406 4,063 4,469
Impairment - 82 82
Exchange differences 40 1,919 1,959
Charge for the year 65 1,765 1,830
At December 31, 2008 and January 1, 2009 511 7,829 8,340
Exchange differences 37 {855) (818)
Charge for the year 76 1,520 1,596
At December 31, 2009 624 _ 8,494 9,118
Carrying Amount
At December 31, 2009 12 . 1,376 1,388
At December 31, 2008 96 3,146 3,242
At January 1, 2008 131 4,063 4,194

53
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13 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant

Leasehold Equipment Fixrures
Frechold Properny and Motor and
Property  Improvements Vehicles Fitungs Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Group
Cost
At January 1, 2008 4,955 515 6,304 1,397 13,171
Exchange differences 189 74 693 235 1,191
Addirons 2 53 801 182 1,038
Disposals - (144) (214) {398) (1,456)
At December 31, 2008 and January 1, 2009 5,146 498 6,884 1,416 13,944
Exchange differences (32) (15) (152 {56) {255)
Addinons - 15 238 99 352
Disposals - {2) (1,430) (315) (1,747)
At December 31, 2009 5,114 496 5,540 1,144 12,294
Depreciauon
At January 1, 2008 369 313 4,158 886 5,726
Exchange differences 4 48 630 165 847
Charge for the year 65 65 784 175 1,089
Disposals - {132) (764) (386} {1,282)
At December 31, 2008 and January 1, 2009 438 294 4,808 840 6,380
Exchange diiferences {2) {5) {145) 23) (175)
Charge for the year 67 74 747 161 1,049
Pisposals - (n {1,348) (314) {1,663)
At December 31 2009 503 362 4,062 664 5,591
Net book value
At December 31, 2009 4,611 134 1,478 480 6,703
At December 31, 2008 4_,_7'9_3 __ 204 2,076 576 _l,5§4
At December 31, 2007 4,586 202 2,146 i 7,445

The net book value of plant, equipment and motor vetucles included £291,000 (2008 £1,149,000) in respect of assets held under hure
purchase contracts The deprecianon charged un chese assess during the year was £87,000 {2008 £254,000)

The total cost of freehold property comprises £3,040,000 1n respect of bulldmgs and £2,074,000 in respect of land A frechold
property, with a net book value of £1,988.000, 15 secured against a mortgage

The Directors have chosen to hold the cost of freehold properues at previous valuations on wanstuen to Internanonal Finanaal
Reporung Standards The cost of freehold property held at previcus valuanons comprises buildings of £1,593,000 and land of
£1,321,000
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14 SUBSIDIARIES

A hst of the sigmficant investmenis in subsidiaries, including the name, country of incorporatien and proporuon of
ownership interest 15 given 1 Note 4 10 the company’s separate financial statemenis All of these subsidianies are
included in the conselhidated results

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS-PRE-PUBLICATION COSTS

2009 2008 2007

.ED(](_) EOOQ £000
Cost
At January 1 45,556 34,958 28,748
Exchange differences {1,795} 5,627 {2}
Acquired on acqmsiton of subsidiaries - - 2,223
Addinons 12,384 13,071 10,481
hsposals {8,029} (8,100) (6,220)
At December 31 48,116 45,556 34,958
Amortization
Ar January 1 13,334 10,012 7,829
Exchange differences (689) 1,815 (13}
Charge for the year 11,559 9,529 8,416
Dusposals (8,029) (8,022) {6,220)
At December 31 16175 13,334 10,012
Carrying amounts 31,941 32,222 24,946

The assessment of the useful fe of pre-publicaton costs and amortizauon involves a sigmficant amount of judgement
hascd on historical trends and management cstumates of future potennal sales, in accordance with the accounung
policy stated 1in Note 2 An overstatement of useful lives could resale in excess amounts being carned forward in
mtangible asscts that otherwise would have been written off to the income statement 1 an caclier pertod Reviews are
performed regularly to assess the recoverability of the carrying amount

16 INVENTORIES

1009 2008 2007

£000 £000 £000

Fimished goods 14,905 16,925 14,553
Work 1 progress 709 636 433
Raw materials 191 260 439
15,805 17,821 15425

All of the Group s invenrories have been reviewed for indicators of impatrment Certain inventones were found o be
impaired and a provision of £380,000 (2008 £251,000) has been recorded accordingly
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables

Other receivables and prepayments

The average credit period on sales of goods 15 76 days {2008 75 days)

All of the Group’s trade and other receivables have been reviewed for ndicarors of imparrment  Certamn trade

2009 2008 2007
£000 £000 £000
28,540 32,789 27,121
5,156 5,695 4,690
33,69 38,484 31,811

receivables, including certain trade receivables not yet due, were found to be impaired and a provision of £826,000

(2008 £1,001,000} has been recorded accordingly The impaired trade receivables are companies which are

expenencing tracing difficulnes

In 1ddinion, some of the unimparred trade recervables are past due as ar the reporung date  The extent of finanaal

assers past due but not imparred 15 as follows

Less than one month

More than one month but less than two months
More than two months but less than threc months
More than three months but less than ssx months
Morce than six months

2009 2008 2007
£000 £000 £000
2,995 4,249 2,894
1,182 823 1,333
213 482 423
351 327 156
235 135 97
4,976 6,016 4,903

The Group has not provided against these recenvables as there has not been a sigmficant change m credit qualiry and

the Group blieves they are sull recoverable No collateral 1s held over these balances

Muovement 1n allowance for doubtful debis

Balance at beginnng of year
Acquistiion of subsidiaries
Amaounis written off in the year
Amounts recovered during the year
Exchange difference

Increase 1n allowance recogmised in profit or loss

Balance at end of the year

2009 2008 2007
£0(.]il £000 {90_(_)_
1,001 1,169 1,755
- - 173
(551) (744) (1,533}
19 50 201
(39) 141 20
396 385 553
B26 1,001 1,169

The Durectors consider thart che carrying amount of trade and other recervables approximates to their farr value

Trade recevables are disclosed after deducting a reserve for sales returns The reserve 15 calculated based on a tme lag

between sales and returns and historical return patrerns
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances
Short term deposirts

Bank overdraft (Note 23)

Cash and cash equivalents for cash flow statement

The carrying amount of these assets approximares their fair value

The effective interest rates on bank balances and short terim deposits was 0 6% (2008 17%)

19 MEDIUM AND LONG TERM LOANS

Bank loans
Obligauoens under finance lcases (see Note 22)

The borrowings (excluding obliganons under finance leascs) are repayable as follows

On demand or within one year

in the second vear

In the third 10 fifth years inclusive
After five years

Less Amount due for settlement within 12 months
{shown under current habilines)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months

2009 2008 2007
£000 £000 £000
14,873 14,725 10,776
9,219 13,455 6,801
24,092 28,180 17,577
- - {1,468)
24,092 28,180 16,109
2009 2008 2007

__ £o00 £000 £000
74,140 80,081 58,103
36 151 87
74,176 80,234 58,190
134 134 2,425

134 134 134
74,006 68,710 41,339
- 11,239 16,630
74,274 80,217 60,528
(134) (134) (2,425)
74,140 80,083 58,103

¥4
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19 MEDIUM AND LONG TERM LOANS (continued)

Weighted  Avcrage tume

average aver which

Fixed rate  Vanable rate  nterest racc 1NCErest race

Total borrowings borrowings  for fixed rate 1s fixed

£000 £000 £000 barrowings % Months

US dollar borrowings 57,941 39,752 18,189 6 6% 38
Other currency borrowings 16,333 - 16,333 - -
As at December 31, 2009 74,274 39,752 34,522 66% 38
US dollar borrowings 63,894 43,836 20,058 6 6% 50
Other currency borrowings 16,323 — 16,323 - -
As at December 31, 2008 80,217 43,836 36,381 6 6% } 50
US dollar borrowings 47,706 25452 22,254 6 8% 67
Other currency borrowings 12,822 - 12,822 - -
As at December 31, 2007 60,528 25,452 35,076 6 8% 67

The variable rate borrowings bear interest by reference 1o LIBOR plus a margin
At December 31, 2009, undrawn borrowing facilines roraled £32,427,000 (2008 £37,002,000)
The Directors «sumate the fair value of the Group’s borrowings to be equal to book value, bv reference to market rates

The above borrowings carry mnrerest at commercial rates ranging from 1 6% to 7 1% Bank loans include £540,000
{2008 £671,000) which 1s secured on a freehold property, with a carrying value of £1,988,000 (2008 £2,014,000)
All other bank loans are unsecured

The Group has a US$115m (2007 US$115m) syndicated bank facthty which expires on June 12, 2012 In addinon,
the group has a five year floating rate of US$50m (2008 US$50m) These fachines arc subject to three principal
covenants, namely

{a) Total consohdated net indebtedness shall not exceed 3 umes EBITDA For the year ended December 31, 2009,
net indebtedness was 2 21 umes (2008 2 38 nmes) EBITDA

(b) The conschdated operating profit before exceptional items and goodwill amornzanon shall exceed three nmes net
interest payable For the year ended December 31, 2009, net interest payable was 3 06 umes (2008 3 08 umes}
covered under this covenant

{€) The consolidated operating profit before goodwill amornzanon shall exceed 1 5 omes netinterest payable For the
year ended December 31, 2009, net interest payable was 2 57 nmes {2008 1 92 tmes) covered under this covenant

20 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES

In the repornng penods under review, other financial assetsfliabilities comprise derivaave financial inseruments as follows

2009 2008 2007
£600 £000 £000
Current financial assets
Dernvanve financial assets — exchange rate swap - 741 -
Current financral habihnes
Denvauve financtal habilities — exchange rate swap 144 - -
Non-current financial habilines
Derrvauve financial instruments — interest rate swaps 2,462 3,911 1,110
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20 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES {continued}

The Group’s acuvinies expose 1t primanly to the financial nisks of changes mn foreign currency exchange rates and
interest rates The Group uses exchange rate swaps to hedge exchange rate exposures The Group uses interest rate
swap contracts to hedge the interest rawe exposure on US Doltar vanable rate borrowings of $64,000,000 The Group
does not use derivanve financial instruments for speculative purposes All interest rate swaps have been designated as
hedging instruments 1n cash flow hedges 1n accordance with TAS 39 The Group's interest rate swaps have been
destgned to match the corresponding loan terms to maximise the effectiveness of the hedging instrument There was
no meffectiveness during the year and all movements were recorded in other comprehensive income  Exchange rate
swaps are not treated as hedging instruments

The following table details the principal amounts and the remaimng terms of interest rate swap contracts outstandimg
at the reporting date

Average interest rate Prinupal Fair value
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 1607
% % £600 1000 £000 £000
Within rwo 1o five years 6 6% 65% 70% 39,752 38,357 8,040 2,462)  (3,190) {403)
After five years - 71% 6 8% -~ 5,479 16,583 - (721) (707}

39,752 43,836 24,623 {2462) (3,911) (1,110}

The tair value of interest rate swaps 1s determined by using the hypothetical derivauve method

21 DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax habihines and assets recogmsed by the group and movements thereon during
the current and prior reporang period

Amount Prowided

200-9_ 2008 IE):E
£000 £000 £000
Deferred taxatton provided in the financial statements 1s as follows
Excess of capital allowances over deprectation — UK 97 189 224
Provision on property revaluation - UK 257 184 284
Other temporary differences — UK 3,138 2,996 2,499
3,492 3,469 3,007
Other overseas temporary differences 483 468 266
3,975 3,937 3,273
Deferred taxanon assets
Other temporary differences — Other overseas - &) (123)
Intangible assets — US (1,351) (1,432) (819)
Provisions - US 736 269 {78)
(615) (1,172) (1,080)
Net deferred taxation hability 3,360 2,763 2,193

The movement on the net provision for deferred taxavon 1s as follows

Amount Provided

2009 2008 2007

£00¢ £000 £00_0
Net provision at Janoary 1 2,765 2,193 4,206
Exchange difference through reserves 144 (315) {15)
Acqusiions - - {2,621)
Charge 1o income and expenditure account 451 887 623
Net provision at December 31 3,360 2,765 2,193

29
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21 DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Ar the balance sheet dare, the group has unused rax losses of £1,908,393 (2008 £2,251,000) available for offset

agamst future profits A deferred rax asset has not been recogmised n respect of such losses, due to the unpredictabiluy
of fuare profit streams

Included in unrecogmsed rax losses are losses of £1,631,000 {2008 £1,894,000) chat will expire in the following years

2009 2008 2007
£OP_I_} . EJP‘O . L000
Year ending December 31

2009 - _ 228
2010 684 981 761)
2011 51 57 39
2012 343 389 270
2013 297 308 214
2014 148 159 109
2017 86 - -
16 g 0

Orher losses may be carried forward indefimitely

22 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Mimumum lease payments

1009 2008 2007
Amounts payable under finance leases 1000 £000 £000
Within one year 129 221 377
In the second to fifth years inclusive 40 169 96
169 390 473
Tcss futurc finance charges {17 (40) (51}
152 350 422

Less Amount due for settlement within
12 months (Note 23) {116} (199} (335)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 36 151 87

It 1s the group's pohicy ro lease certain of ats plant, equipment and motor vehicles under finance leases For the year
ended December 31, 2009, the average effecuve borrowing rate was 7 2% (2008 6 5% Interest rates are fixed at the
contract date All beases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been eniered 1nto for conungent
rental payments All lease obligations are denominated n sterhng

The farr value of the Group’s lease obligations approaimates to their carrying amount

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets
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23 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

2009 2008 2007
£000 £000 £000
Current loan instalments 134 134 134
Loan note - - 823
Bank overdrafts - - 1,468
Borrowings {Note 1%) 134 134 2,425
Finance leasc obligations (Note 22) 116 199 335
250 333 2,760

The carryimg amount of these habilities approximates to thar fair value Converuble loan notes were settled 1n 2008

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

1009 2008 2007

égUO £000 1000

Trade payables 27,132 35,839 26,523
Other payables 5,315 6,653 6,103
32,447 42,492 32,626

The average credit period for trade purchases 1s 103 days (2008 104 days) The Directors consider that the carrying

amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value

25 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

28,000,000 {2608 28,000,000} shares of common stock of par value US$0 10 cach (“shares of common stock ™) with

an aggregate nominal value of US$2 800,000 (2008 US$2,800,000)

2009
000
Equuty share capual
Allotred, calted up and fully paid
Shares af comman stock of par value US$0 10 each
20,444,550 (2008 20,444, 550) 1,162

The Company has one class of common stock which carry no nght to fixed mcome

2008 2007
L000 B £000
1,162 1,162
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26 RETAINED DEFICIT AND OTHER RESERVES

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effectuve portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging
instruments related to hedged transacuons

Translanon reserve
The translation reserve compnises all foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the closing balance sheets
of forewgn operavons of the Company and the results of fareign operanans of the Company since January 1, 2004

Treasury stock

Treasury stock represents the Company's purchase of i1ts own shares 1he Company owns 765,321 (2008 765,321)
shares, represenung 3 7% (2008 3 7%) of its shares of common stock

2009 2008

Drvidends _ £000 £000
Amounts recognised as distributions 1o equity holders in the period

Interum dividend for the year ended December 31, 2009 of 3 15p {2008 3 15p} per share 820 620

Final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2008 of 4 Op (2007 4 Op) per share 787 787

_ 1,407 1,407

Proposed final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2009 of 4 Op (2008 4 Op) per share 787 787

787 787

The proposed hinal drvidend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual Meerting and has not been included as
a habilirv 1 these financial statements
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27 NOTESTO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

No addiuiens to property, plant and equipment duning the year were financed by new fmance leases (2008 £379,000)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits Cash equivalents are short term highly hquid imvestments that are

readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant changes in value

28 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Quarto Group, Inc has i1ssued guarantees in respect of bank loans of £74,274,000 (2008 £80,217,000} The
Group has also 1ssued guarantees in respect of hire purchase creditors of £152,000 {2008 £350,000% There are other

contingent labihities, ansing w the ordinary course of business, 1 respect of huganon, which the Directors believe will

not have a signuficant effect on the financial posinon of the Group

29 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

2008 2008
£000 £000
Mimmum lease payments under operating leases
recogmised 1 incnme for the year 1,319 1,638

2007
£000

1,546

At the balance sheet date, the group had outstanding commicments for furure mimmum lease payments under non-

cancellable operaning leases, which fall due as follows

2099 2008 2007

£000 . £000 £000

Within one year 1,247 1,127 1,439
In the second to fifth years nclusive 2,665 1,729 2,553
Afrer five years - - 66
3,912 2,856 4,058

Operaung lease payments represent rentals payable by the group, pnmarntly for s office properues

There were no capital commitments at the year end for which no provision had been made (2008 £Nil}

30 SHARE OPTIONS

At December 31, 2009, the following share opnions over shares of common stock were outstanding under the
Company’s Execuuve Share Opnion Schemes

Number of shares Date exerctsabie Option price per share
9,000 February 22, 2003 - February 21, 2010 L1115

3,000 February 15, 2005 — February 14, 2012 £067

20,000 February 14, 2006 - February 13, 2010 £0 83

14,500 February 4, 2006 — February 13, 2013 4083

29,686 September 30, 2007 - September 29, 2011 £163

19,814 September 30, 2007 - September 29, 2014 £163
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31 REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONMNEL

The remunerauon of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the group, 1s ser out below 1n aggregate
for each of the categortes specified 1n [AS 24 Related Partv Disclosures Further informanon abour the remuneranion of

mndividual direcrors 1s provided 1n the audited part of the Directars’ Remuneranon Report on pages 32 10 33

Short term employee benefits
Orther long term benefits

32 DIRECTORS TRANSACTIONS

2009 2008
£000 4000
1,014 1,007
170 172
1,184 1,179

During the year R | Morley marntained a current account with the Group The debit batance on thss account was
less than £5,000 throughout the year The balance at the year end was £2,000 (2008 £2,000) Dunng the year

I F Orbach loaned money to the Group and has received no interest (2008 £2,000) The balance outstanding ai the
beginning of the year was £36,000 and the balance at the end of the year, which was also the highest amount

outstanding, was £228,000

P Campbell, a non-execunve direcror, earned consulung fees of £15,000 {2008 £15,000) during the year These fees

were on an arm’s length basis

33 RECONCILIATION OF FIGURES INCLUDED IN THE CHAIRMAN S LETTER

Profit before tax, before amornzation of non-current intangibles and non-recurring items

Amornzaton of non-current intangibles
Non-recurnng 1ems

Profi before tax

ERITDA

Profit before tax, before amoruzanon of non-current mtangibles and non-recurning 1tems

Net interest
Deprecianon
Amortuzauon of pre-publicaton costs

EBITDA, before non-recurring items

Net debt

Medium and long term borrowings
Short term borrowings

Cash and cash equivalents

2009 2008
£000 £000
6,859 7,664
(1,596) (1,830)
(1,625) (4,274)
3,638 . 1,560
6,859 7,664
3,332 3686
1,049 1,089
11,559 9,529
22,799 21,968
74,176 80,234
250 333
(24,092) (28,180)
50,334 52,387
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34 RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group 15 exposed to market nisk through its use of financial instruments and specifically to currency nisk, mrerest
rate nisk, credit nsk, iqudity nisk and certain other price risks, which result from both s operaung and invesung
activities The Group’s nsk management 15 co-ordinated at 1ts headquarters, in close co-operanon with the board of
directors, and focuses on acuvely securing the Group's short to medium term cash flows by mimmusing the exposure to
finanaial markets Long term finanaial imvestments are managed to generate lasting returns

The Group does not actively engage m the trading of financral assets for speculative purposes nor does 1t write
oprrons The most sigmificant financial risks to which the Group 15 exposed and a summary of financial assets and
habshties by caregory are desenbed below

Foraign Currency Sensitivity

Exposures to currency exchange rates anse from the Group's overseas sales and costs, which are primarily
denominated in US Dollars To nutrgate the impact of exchange rate fluctuanons, the Group tries to match its US

Dollar inflows wath us US Dollar outflows but, 1n 2009 and 2008, the Group had net US Dollar income

Foreign currency denomunated financial assets and habilities, cranslated into Sterling ac the closing rate, are as fotlows

2009 2003

£000 £000
US_$ Other US__S OLCI.
Financial assets 83,002 7,006 89,313 7,118
Finanaal habilites (15,118) (2,269) (20,194) (2,367)
Short-term exposure 67,884 4,737 69,119 4,751
Finanaal habilites {61,361) (5,950) (69,326} (6,091)
[Long-term ¢xposure (61,361) (5,950) (69,326) (6,091)
Net exposure _ 6,523 (1,213) (207) (1,340)

The following table 1llustrates the sensiuvity of the net result for the year and equity in regards 1o the Group's
financial assets and financial hatnhnes and the US Dallar — Sterling exchange rate

It assumes a +/~ 5% change of the SterlingfUS-Dollar exchange rate This percentage has been determined based on
the average market volauhty 1n exchange rates in the year ended December 31, 2009 The sensinvity analysss 1s based
on the Group's foreign curreny finanaal mstruments held at each balance sheet date

If Sterling had strengthened against the US Dollar by 5% (2008 10%) then this would have had the following impact

2009 2008
£000 £000

Profit after tax for the year (224) . 14




66

The Quarto Group T Annual Report 2009

Notes to the Accounts Year Ending December 31, 2009

If Sterhing had weakened agawnst the US Dollar by §% {2008 10%) then this would have had the following impact

2009 2008
£000 £000
Profic after tax for the year ) 247 {16)

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary dunng the year depending on the volumc of overseas transactions

Nonetheless, the analysis above 15 considered to br representanve of the Group™ exposure to currency nsk
Interest Rate Sensitivity

The Group's policy 15 to mimmuse interest race cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing, through mterest rate
swaps A large part of lunger-term berrowings are, therefore, usually a1 fixed rates At Decernber 31, 2009, the Group
15 exposed to changes 1n market interest rates through 1ts bank borrowings, which are subject to vanable interest rates
~ see Note 19 for further information

The following table illustrates the sensitvity of the profit after tax for the year and equity to a reasonably possible
change 1n 1nterest rates of +/-1%, with effect from the beginning of the year These changes are considered to be
reasonably possible based on observanon of current marker conditions The calculauons are based on the Group's
financial instruments held at each balance sheet date All other vanables are held constant

A 0 25% wincrease m 1nterest raies would have had the following impact

2009 2008
€000 £000
Profit afeer tax for the jear {32) (33)
Equity -4%9 2,.72
A 0 25% decrease 1n interest rates w ould have had the following impact
2009 2008
£000 £000
Profit after tax for the year 32 33
Equity {129) 277)

Credst Risk Analysis

The Group’s maximumn exposure to credit nsk 1s mited to the carrying amount of financial assets recogmsed at the
balance sheet daie, as summarised below

2009 2008

£000 £0q0

Dervanve financial instruments - 741
Cash and cash equivalents 24,092 28,180
Trade and other receivables 33,696 38,484
57,788 67,405

The Group's crecdit risk 1s primanly artribucable to ats trade receivables The amounts presented tn the balance sheet
are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, esumated by the Group’s management based on prior experience and
their assessment of the current econormic environment

The Group continucusly morutors defaults of customers and other counterparues, :Wdentified exther individually or by
group, and incorporates this information into 1ts credit nisk controls Where available at reasonable cost, external
credit raungs and/or reports on customers and other counterparres are obramned and used The Group’s policy 15 10
deal only with creditworthy counrerparues
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The Group's management considers that all the above financial assets that are not impaired for each of the reporting
dates under review are of good credit quality, including those that are past due

None of the Group’s financial asseis are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group 1s not exposed to any sigmificant crecit risk exposure to any
single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics The credit risk for hquid funds
and other short-term financial assets s hmited, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high qualiey
external credit ratings

Liquidity Risk Analysis

The Group manages 1ts iquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments for long-term
financial habihures as well as cash-outflows due in day-to day business Liquidity needs are monitored 1n vartous uime

bands, on a day-to-day and week-to-week basis

The Group mamntains cash and marketable securines to meer 1ts hquidity requirements Funding for long-term
hquiity needs 1s addimonally secured by an adequare amount of commutted credit facilizes

As at December 31, 2009, the Group’s habiliues have contractual maturines which are summarised below

December 31, 2009 Current Non-current
within 6101l leo$ aver
6 munchs months years 5 years
£000 £00[2 £009 £002
Bank loans 67 68 85,656 -
Finance lease obligations 65 63 41 _
Trade payables 27,132 - - -
Other short term financial labiliues 5,315 - - -
Dervanves 144 - - -
32,723 131 85,697 -

This compares 1o the marunity of the Group s financial habilities 1n the previous reporung period as follows

December 31, 2008 Current Non-current
within 61012 lws$ over
6 months months years 5 years
£000 £000 £000 £000
Bank loans 68 69 84,022 15,710
Finance lease obligauons 117 104 169 -
Trade payables 35,8358 - - -
Other short term financial habihiuies 6,653 - - -
Denvanves - - 4,431 1,001

42,677 173 88,622 16,711
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Summarv of Financal Assets and Liabilives by Category

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and habihues as recogrised at the balance sheet date of the

reporting penods under review may also be categonsed as follows See Note 2, sigmficant accounung pohicies
covering financial assets, financial habilites and denvative financial mstruments and hedge accounnng for

explanatons about how the category of instruments affects their subsequent measurement

Current assets

Denvauve financial instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss

— Exchange rate swap

Loans and receivables
— Trade and other receivables
- Cash and cash equivalems

Non current habilines

Denvauve financial instruments designated as hedging instruments
- Interest rare swap

Financial habilites measured at amornzed cost
- Borrowings

— Other payables

Current liabilites

Denvanve financial mstruments carried at fair value through profit and loss

- Exchange rate swap
Finanaal habilines measured at amoruzed cost
- Borrowings
~ Trade payables and other short term hinancal habihnes

Capital Risk Management

2009 2008
£000 £000

- 741
33,696 38,484
14,092 28,180
57,788 67,405
2,462 3,911
74,176 80,234
17 20
76,655 84,165
144 -

250 333
32,447 42,492
32,841 42,825

The Group manages 1ts capual 1o ensure that ennues in the Group will be able to conunue as going concerns while

maximsing the return to shareholders through an opumal batance of debt and equity The caputal structure of the
Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed 1n notes 19, 22 and 23, cash and cash equivalents
and equity actributable to equity holders of the parent, compnising share capital and reserves as disclosed 1n the

consolidated statement of changes i equity on page 39

The Board reviews the caputal structure, including the level of indebtedness and interese cover, as required As part of

this review, the Board considers the cost of capital and the nisks assocrated with each class of capual Details of the

level of indebtedness, 1n the form of Ner debt 1o EBITDA, and interest cover are given 1n note 19, including a
comparison with the covenants under the Group's finanaing facihities
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FIXED ASSETS
Investments

Creditors Amounts falbing due within one year
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

CAPITAL ANID RESERVES
Called up share capiral
Treasury stack
Reserves - Paid i surplus

- Profit and loss

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

Notes

== B = A=

2009 2008
£000 £000
7,588 7,379
7,588 7,379
{5,119) (3.638)
{5,119) {3,638)
2,469 3,741
1,162 1,162
(388) (388)
21,768 21,768
(20,073) {18,801)
2,469 3,741

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonised for 1ssue on March 22, 2010
They were signed on 1ts behalf by

=S

M | Mousley
Threcior
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The separate finanaial statements of the company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 As permuireed
by that Act, the separate financial statements have been prepared in aceordance wath UK GAAP formar

These financial statements present mformation for the company, not about its group, which 1s presented on pages 36 - 68

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with applicable accounting standards and under the
histonical cost accounting rules

Under secton 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the company 1s exempt from the requirement to present 1ts own profit
and loss account

Under FRS 1 the company 1s exempt from the requirement to prepare a cash flow statemens on the grounds that a
parent undercaking includes the company 1n 1ts own published consolidated financial statements

The company has taken advantage of the exempuon contained i FRS 8 and has therefore not disclosed transaconons
or balances with wholly owned subsidsanes which form part of the group (or mvestees of the group qualifying as
related parties)

Accounung policies
The following accounang policies have been applied consistently 1 dealing with items which are considered matenal
in relztion o the financial statements, except as noted below

Investments

Investments 1 subsidianies are stated ar cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment

Crednors
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings arc imtally recognised at fair value, and subsequently measured at
amorused cost using the effecuve nterest method

Share-based payments

The fair value of employee share option grants 15 calculated using a binomial model The resulting cost 1s charged to
the income statement over the vesting period of the plans The value of the charge, which 15 immacertal, 1s adjusted
1o reflect expected and actual levels of opuons vesung

Finanaal Guarantee Contracts

Where the company cnters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies
within 1ts group, the company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such In this
respect, the company treats the guarancee coniract as a conuaagent lability unul such ume as it becomes probable
that the company will be required to make a payment under the guaranree
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2 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE COMPANY
The profi for the financial year dealt with in the financial statements of the parent company was £135,000

{2008 £170,000) As permitted by secnon 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no separate profit and loss account 15
presented in respect of the parent company

3 INVESTMENTS

000
At January 1, 2009 7,379
Additons 209
At December 31, 2009 7,588
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4 SUBSIDIARIES

NAME

PLACE AND DATE ISSUED AND FULLY PERCENTAGE  BUSINESS

OF INCORPORATION PAID SHARE CAPTAL HELD

Quarro Publishing plE~- | England 100,000 shares of £1 each 100~ Co-edinon
1 Aprd, 1976 Pubhishing

Quarto Inc De[a:varc, USA 60 shares of no par value 100* ~" TCoedion
16 October, 1986 Publishing

Western Screen and Sign England | 1,500 shares of £1 each 100* Publishing

Limited 24 November, 1961

.Q-:J;r;:)"Magazmes Engtand 1,000 shares of £1 each 100 Publishing

Limited 20 May, 1986

Regent Publishing Hong Kong 1,000_;|'1-arcs of HK$10 cach 75 Co-edition

Services Limited 23 Ociober, 1985 Publishing

Apple Press Limited England 100 shares of £1 each 100 Publishing
5 June, 1984

Quarto Australia Pry Led  Austrahia 8 redeemable preference 100+ Publishing
14 September, 1981 shares of A$1 each and 103

ordinary shares of A$1 cach

Premier Books Limited New Zcaland 400,000 shares of 86" Publishing
27 September, 1996 NZ$1 each

RotoVision $ A " TSwreserland 1,500 shares of SFrS00 each 100" Co-edition
18 July, 1977 Publishing

Rockport Pubbshers Inc Massachusetts, USA T 4,000 shares of no par value 100 Publishing
4 December, 1989

Book Sales nc Belaware, USA 85 shares of no par value 85 Publishing
13 December, 1972

Scafa-Tornabene Art Delaware, USA 1,210 shares of no 100 Publishing

Publishing Co , Inc 29 June, 1987 par value

Walter Foster Delaware, USA 19,625 shares of 100 Publishing

Pubhistung, Inc 10 February, 1988 US$0 01 cach

Global Book Publishing " Austaha 1,000 shares of 100 Co-cdition

Pry Limited 4 November, 1999 A$1 each Publishing

Creanve Publishing “Delaware, USA 100 shares of 100 Pubhshing

International, Inc 28 June, 2004 US$0 01 each

Aurum Press Limited England 382,502 shares of 100 Pubhishing
31 May, 1977 £1 each

Lifenme Distributors Austraha 100,004 shares of 85 Pubhishing

‘The Book People’ 3 December, 1990 AS$1 each

Prv Limited

MBI Publhishing Delaware, USA 100 units 100 Pubhshing

Company LELC

6 January, 2000

* Durectly held by The Quarto Group, Inc
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5 CREDITORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2009 2008
£000 _ £000
Amounts owed ro substdiarv undertakings 5,119 3,638

6 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY STOCK

Details of called up share capital and treasury stock are set out tn Notes 25 to 26 of the consolidated financial
statements

7  RETAINED DEFRICIT AND OTHER RESERVES

Paid I'rofit and

surplus luss account

£000 £000

At begmning of year 21,768 (18,801)
Result for the year - 135
Dividends - (1,407)
At end of year 21,768 (20,073_)
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8  RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS

Profit for the financial year
Dividends

Retained (loss) for the financial year
Issuc of shares

Net movement in shareholders’ funds
Sharcholders’ funds ar January 1

Shareholders’ funds ar December 31

9  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Conungent habilities are disclosed 1n Note 28 to the Group accounts

2009 2008

~ £000 £000
135 170
(1,407) (1,467)
(1,272) (1,237)
- )
(1,272) (1,236)
3,741 4,977
2,469 3,741




The Quarto Group Ine. Annual Repont 2009

Five Year Summary

Results

Revenue
EBITDA

Operaung proht before amoruzanon

of non-current intangibles and excepuonal icems

Operaung profit

Profit before tax before amornizauon

of non-current intangibles and excepuional 1iems

Profit before tax

Profit atinibutable to equitv holders

Assets employed
Non-current assets
Current assets
Current habihines

Non-current habibinies

Net assefs

Financed by

Fqurry
Mmnonty mterests

Key statistics

Earmings per share

Diluted earnings per share
Adjusted diluted earmings per share

2609 2008 2007 2006 2005
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
106,631 112,743 100,107 93,613 95,038
22,774 21,968 20,014 17,977 17,545
10,168 (11,350 10,560 9,557 8,916
7,246 5,246 2,618 6,932 6,789
6,859 7,664 7,651 _ 7262 6,693
3,638 1,560 6,709 4,637 _ 4,566

N 2,567 {117) 4,243 2,800 2,615
31,330 35,358 31,641 20,396 23,717
105,534 117,448 89,759 75,996 78,069
(33,140)  (43,590)  (36,933)  (45,218)  (32,222)
(80,630) (88,102) (62,602} {31,546) {(49,817)
23,094 _21.114 21,865 19,628 19,747
18,416 15,909 17,505 15,951 16,062
4,678 5,205 3,960 3,677 3,685
23,094 21,114 21,865 19,628 19,747
13 0p (0 6)p 21 6p 14 3p 13 8p
13 0p (0 &)p 21 1p 13 9p 13 5p
26 Op 26 5p 24 4p 22 5p 21 3p

75




